
1 
 

 

Draft 

TOWN OF RED HOOK 

CONSERVATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 

Minutes of meeting 

December 12, 2012 

Members present:  Chairwoman Laurie Husted, Susan Ellis, Sarah Imboden, Mike Zelie, Denis Collet    

Absent:  Zoie Riel, Karen Schneller-McDonald, Dr. Jane Ferguson, Anne Rubin      

Guest:  Ross Gould of Environmental Associates of New York 

CALL TO ORDER/QUORUM:  Chairwoman Laurie Husted called the meeting to order at 7:25 P.M.  

A quorum was present. 

MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 12, 2012 AND NOVEMBER 14, 2012 MEETINGS:  There was 

no CAC meeting in October.  The minutes of the September 12 and November 14 meetings were 

approved with a motion made by Sarah Imboden and seconded by Mike Zelie. 

LENGTH OF MEETINGS:  Laurie Husted noted that administratively, she has observed that of all the 

meetings she attends, those of about an hour length are the most effective.  She proposed working 

towards that goal, having the main meeting be from 7 – 8 P.M.  That would allow for more project time 

and subcommittee work at different times of the week.  Then subcommittee work could be reported at 

the main meeting.  Denis Collet suggested that if such a format were to be followed, reports would need 

to be brief and precise.  Sarah Imboden added that more discussions could be done through e-mails, as 

well as follow-up for absentees. Laurie said that reports could be in 15 minute blocks, including a 5 

minute feedback.  Denis added that subcommittee reporters would need to be focused.  Laurie said that 

she could send out notices a week ahead of the meeting with points to be covered.   

Susan Ellis noted that if the time spent on the main meeting for the whole last year was analyzed, 

presentations and discussions with guest speakers accounted for much of it.   She added that when work 

is done in outside subcommittees, the talking points need to be very well defined, or it is difficult to 

make a sensible presentation in the minutes.  There are often discussions that are “understood” by those 

who work on a project, but need supporting information to make sense in a public document.  An 

increase in focus would definitely help. 

ENERGY SUBCOMMITTEE:  Laurie Husted reported that the current energy work is centered 

around energy assessments (a rename of audits).  In the past two months the Town and Village of Red 

Hook passed resolutions to join with Energize New York, the northern Westchester Consortium that is 

expanding to promote home energy improvements in the region.  The Village of Tivoli is scheduled to 

do so this month.   The CAC is the Town liaison to Energize New York.  Laurie told both villages that 

the CAC would offer to act as liaison on their behalf, but encouraged them to have their own.   



2 
 

 

Laurie continued that there are many ways to spread the word about energy assessments (audits), and 

her contact Melissa Everett at Energize New York has asked her to develop an outreach plan detailing 

the goals for Red Hook.  Laurie started filling out the plan and feels that one goal that would be 

achievable would be to get 500 assessments done.  She noted that the Energy Subcommittee would not 

achieve any upgrades without the assessments.  Laurie added that Jane Ferguson already had her 

assessment and she and Sarah Imboden had signed up for theirs.  She suggested possibilities for opening 

up the process to include neighbors who might be encouraged to sign up.  Sarah noted that she has 

already had her assessment done and thought that it might be distracting to have others trying to learn 

about the process at that time.  The question is what are the hurdles that keep others from joining the 

process.  Sarah added that perhaps it would help to ask friends or neighbors to the meeting where the 

assessment report is discussed with the details of what energy upgrades could be done and how to 

finance them.  

 There was discussion of other ways to get the word out about energy assessments and upgrades.  Laurie 

reported that she is ordering 40 yard signs that will say that “This home has had an energy assessment 

and/or energy upgrade,” as a means of increasing awareness.  The leaders who have done the 

assessments are asked to tell 10 other people about the process.  There will be an ad in Hudson Valley 

Mercantile and possibly in the Observer, so that residents begin to see information.  Laurie asked if 

members of the CAC, even though they are not on the Energy Subcommittee, would agree to tell 10 

people, using a one page form that would make it easy.  She could give the on-line links for signing up, 

for getting electrical usage from Central Hudson, and for a list of contractors.  Denis Collet suggested a 

consolidated form that could be e-mailed, listing a step by step process, with links to appropriate 

information.  Laurie said that she would e-mail one to all CAC members to try out.   Denis added a 

suggestion about a You Tube video of the process.  Laurie said that there are Energy Videos from 

NYSERDA that she has thought about putting on PANDA TV.  Sarah Imboden noted that the Town 

Board is very positive about energy assessments and Brenda Cagle asked all the Town Board members 

to fill out the forms and report results to the public. 

Laurie Husted presented a listing of multifamily dwelling owners and asked if CAC members knew any 

of them.  She noted that the Energy Subcommittee was meeting on Monday with the Rural Ulster 

Preservation Company (RUPCO), which contracts with the New York State Energy Research and 

Development Authority (NYSERDA) to market the Green Jobs/Green New York Program, and Todd 

Baright to discuss doing energy assessments.  She wondered if any other owners would be interested in 

joining the meeting and if CAC members would contact owners that they know.  CAC members 

discussed who might be a good contact and Susan Ellis agreed to Laurie’s request to contact some 

owners, if she is given the information.  Continuing, Laurie said that she had hoped that the list would 

generate more large owners and would be more helpful.  Susan Ellis suggested that some of the 

contractor owners might have more interest than an owner with a two family home 

CAC WEBSITE:  Sarah Imboden reported that Town Webmaster Dick Wambach has updated and 

cleaned up the CAC website using Sarah’s suggestions for a logo and information.  She said that the 

challenge now is for the CAC to put together new information.  It would be a good goal for CAC 



3 
 

 

members to think of at least one new item to include.  Laurie Husted asked if the website is linked to the 

CAC minutes.  Sarah said that would be a good suggestion. 

TRANSPORTATION SUBCOMMITTEE:  Laurie Husted reported that the Dutchess County 

Bike/Pedestrian Task Force is offering bus shelters.  Bard College is looking to have a shelter on Route 

9G at Annandale/Kelly Road and at the northern entrance.  The Town has to install and maintain them.  

Laurie added that bike racks also are being offered, but she hasn’t seen the specifications.   

The Bike/Pedestrian Task Force has asked Red Hook to send a representative to the meetings; the people 

who are attending the meetings will be represented in the plan that they are creating.  Laurie was 

notified that the Task Force understands that she hasn’t been able to get a representative from Red Hook 

to attend, but if the Town wants to be included in the plan, it needs to submit ideas for high priority 

pedestrian walkway upgrades, where the Town would want pedestrians to be safer.  The main one that 

Laurie thought of is the crossing for Two Boots at The entrance to Bard College.  Other suggestions 

were the Post Office area and from Holy Cow to cross over to the Lyceum Theater.   

Laurie noted that Rhinebeck and Red Hook are not represented in the bicycle/pedestrian count that the 

Task Force is doing.  They did one in the fall and are doing a second one.  They are looking for two 

people on Tuesday January 8, 2013 from 5 – 7 PM, and on Saturday from 12 – 2 PM, to stand at the 

intersection in the Village of Red Hook and count bicyclists and pedestrians.  Laurie asked another 

person to help her; Mike Zelie said that he would help.  Laurie said that she would attend the Dutchess 

County Bike/Pedestrian Task Force training and have more answers about the project. 

WASTE SUBCOMMITTEE:  Sarah Imboden reported that the Subcommittee would meet in January 

to set an agenda for 2013, and has compiled a 10 point list of ideas on how to make holidays greener.  

Susan Ellis asked who works with Sarah on the Waste Subcommittee; Sarah replied that Jeff Urbin, Zoie 

Riel and Kathy O’Connor of Tivoli.  Their goal is to meet quarterly and they have named the 

Subcommittee “Red Hook Recycles.”   Laurie Husted reported that she, Jeff Urbin and Kathy O’Connor 

toured the Ulster County Recycling and Composting Facility; Ulster County is trying to make single 

stream recycling work. 

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES REVIEW:  Mike Zelie reported that the controversy over the 

Preserve at Lakes Kill continues, as the extended public hearing received more questions and comments.  

The developer was present with his traffic engineer and project engineer.  They debated the 

requirements for site distance based on the determination of Feller-Newmark Road as a low volume 

road, but proposed to increase safety of the entrance/exit points by cutting the grade of the road back a 

foot.  Planning Consultant Michele Greig said that the developer is permitted 11 lots instead of 3.  

Concerns about the proposed community septic systems were answered by the project engineer, who 

said that each house and septic system would be on generators so that power outages wouldn’t affect the 

pumps.  The community septic system will be operated by the Dutchess County Water and Waste Water 

Authority.  Mike Zelie noted that the developer is preparing a revised stormwater run-off plan; Laurie 

Husted said that the CAC could ask to see that for review and comment.  Mike Zelie added that the 

public hearing for the Preserve at Lakes Kill will continue at the December 17 Planning Board meeting. 



4 
 

 

Mike Zelie reported that the Hoffman Residential Development proposed for Old Farm Road was 

presented for sketch plan and site plan approval.  The application is for approval of 96 mixed residential 

units on 50.64 acres in the Traditional Neighborhood Development – Residential Zoning District.  The 

water supply will connect Village water with the Rokeby Gardens water system.  There is an area of 

State designated Freshwater Wetlands on part of the property.   Laurie Husted said that she felt unclear 

what the CAC role in review would be; one of the purposes of the Traditional Neighborhood 

Development Zoning is that development be concentrated in the areas adjoining the villages.  As this is 

in preliminary stages, the CAC will follow details of the proposal.  Susan Ellis noted that she would 

abstain from any review due to personal connections.  

ANNOUNCEMENT:  Denis Collet reported that the Cary arboretum is offering a rescreening of 

“Breaking Ice” in Hudson and Rhinebeck, as many who tried to attend the first screening could not get 

in.  Denis suggested that the CAC make it a field trip with a discussion following.  It would be a good 

opportunity to talk about climate change and participate in action.   

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 P.M. 

NEXT MEETING:  Wednesday, January 9, 2013 at 7 P.M. at the Town Hall                             


